[Insert Subcommittee Name Here]

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government.

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number;

Anthony Szema MD

Department of Medicine :
SUNY -~ Stony Brook School of Medicine
Stony Brook NY 11794

2164

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-govemmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

American Thoracic Society

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes X No

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing.

See Attached

Signam.‘ Date: 5/0//,
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TO: Grace Stephens  FAX 202 225-8069
FR: Gary Ewart, staff American Thoracic Society
RE: Signed Truth in Testimony form ~ Dr, Anthony Szema

DT: 4/11/11

Please let me know if you have questions or need additional information.

Gary Ewart

Director, Government Relations
American Thoracic Society

1160 18th Street, N.W., Suite 300 ¢
Wdshington, D.C. 20036 |

Phone: 202 296-9770

Fax: 202 296-9776
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Anthony Ming Szema, M.D.
Federal Grants and Awards

s 2010 $10,000 Genentech unrestricted investigator-initiated grant for

asthma research related to IgE

s 2004-9
$700,000

NIH HL K08 02713

“Modulation of Airway Constriction and Inflammatory Response by
(Sami |. Said, M.D., mentor)

Vasoactive Intestinal Peptide”

American Thoracic Society
Federal Grants and Awards .

Source Project 2009 2010 Project #
NHLBI Grant Support $25,000.00 $25,000.00 Na
“Breathing in America®
| NHLBI | Publications Support: "Surgical Theraples for $4.800.00 Na
Lung Disease; Tansplant and Lung
o Reduction
MNHILLBI | Publication Suppart: "Developmental Aspacts $7,200.00 Na
5 of the Upper Airway”
CRC MECOR program $27,998.88 200-2009-M-
L 28960
CDC MECOR program $24.,000.00 200-20092-M-
. 31165
EPA Grant Support: "Workshep:Respiratory $30,000.00} EP10HQ001399
. Health Effects of Global Ctimate Change
| USAID Subcontract: TBTCA program $444 663.00 | $375,272.68 na
. Tolal $500,661.88 | $455,272.68
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House Committee on Appropriations
Subcommittee on Interior, Environment and Related Agencies

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government,

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Ryan Schmitt
Petticoat-Schmitt Civil Contractors, Inc.,

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

NUCA, Representing Utility and Excavation Contractors

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 2008?

Yes No

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing,.

Signature: 7 Date: March 28, 2011




Subcommittee on Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies
-Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-governmental witnesses
to disclose to the Committee the following information. A non-governmental witness is any witness
appearing on behalf of himself/herself or on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a
state, local or tribal government.

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Richard H. Opper
Director
Montana Department of Environmental Quality

Helena, MT 59620
email = ropper@mt.gov

-
1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please

list organization(s) you are representing.  yes

Environmental Council of the States (ECOS)
WWW.EC0s.0rg

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing,.

See attached spreadsheet. No awards were to Mr. Opper. All awards were to ECOS or its subsidiary.

Signature: Date: 3/25/2011



Source

Grant
: Awarded | Amount Project
Grant/Contract No. Agency Program to: (%) Period Comments
OMNIBUS 471109 -
X5-83395401-2 EPA 2007 ECOS 5,000,000.00 | 3/31/14
Exchange Minus
Network Assoc. $215,000
Program 2/1/08 - EPA In-Kind
08-83373001-3 EPA Support-2007 ECOS 5,000,000.00 | 2/1/13 Amount
Permit
Compliance
System
Mcodernization 1/9/06 -
EA-83291301-4 EPA and Training ECOS 323,374.00 | 1/8/11 Ended
Toxic release
Inventory
Capacity
Building,
Education and
Qutreach, and 7/1/08 -
T1-83390401-2 EPA Clearinghouse | ECOS 1,000,000.00 | 6/30/13
Federal
Facilities 6/1/2006 -
DE-FG02-06EW7044 DOE Forum ECOS 663,000.00 | 5/31/2012 Mod. #008
State Info.
Mgm't ENLC 6/1/08 -
05-83376501-4 EPA Prog Support ECOS 1,597,204.00 | 1/31/13
State of Multi-Partner
New Publishing,
Jersey Exchange
DEP Network 7/1/10 -
IR10-10 {EPA) Browser ECCS 240,000.00 | 8/31/11
Interstate Minus
Technology $18,400
and Regulatory 10/1/06 - Recipient
RT-83326001-2 EPA Councit ITRC 3,150,000.00 | 9/30/11 Contribution
Savannah SRNS
River Represented
Nuclear Attenuation by DOE
, Solutions, ;| Processes for Contract No.
SUBCONTRACT NO. LLC Metals and 10/1/08 - DE-ACQ9-
ACB5322N (DOE) Radignuclides | ITRC 150,000.00 | 12/31/11 08SR22470
Interstate
Technology
and Regulatory 4/6/06 -
DE-FG01-06EW07039 DOE Council ITRC 5,000,000.00 | 4/9/11 Mod. #006
Interstate
Technology
and Regulatory 7/1/10 - Mod
W912HZ-10-2-0036 DCD Council ITRC 759,044.64 | 6/30/11 #PO0007

Note: ITRC is a subsidiary
of ECOS.




Committee on Appropriations
Subcommittee on Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government,

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Craig M. Schiffries, Ph.D.
Director for Geoscience Policy

Geoloiical Societi of America

Washington, D.C. 20005

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

Geological Society of America

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing,

Please see attached list,

Signature: Date: Aprii 1, 2011




The Geological Society of America {(GSA)
Federal Grants or Contracts
2007 thru February 25, 2011

Fiscal

Year Amount

2007  173,900.00
6,263.43
15,000.00
33,491.00
60,250.00
29,059.87
21,870.00

2,475.00

10,000.00
352,309.30

2008 180,900.00
6,198.37
10,000.00
51,394.00
43,905.00
32,293.29
13,300.00

55,601.00

10,000.00
403,591.66

2009  30,800.91
42,026.89

13,300.00

188,100.00
9,098.92
63,940.00
203,210.00

65,000.00
621,476.72

Source
Agency

NSF

NSF

NSF ‘

Forest Service - USDA
National Park Service
UsSGS

UsGS

BLM

USGS

NSF

NSF

National Park Service
Forest Service - USDA
National Park Service
UsSGS

UsGS

BLM

USGS

UsGs
USsGS
UsSGS

NSF
NSF
Forest Service - USDA
National Park Service
BLM

Program

Matching Research Grant
Program

BioGeo Website

Drought Meeting

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America
Congressional Science Fellow
Geolnfomatics

GeoCorps America
Sponsorship of Annual Meeting

Matching Research Grant
Program

BioGeo Website

Wildfires

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America
Congressional Science Fellow
Geolnfomatics

GeoCorps America
Sponsorship of Annual Meeting

International Year of Planet Earth

Congressional Science Fellow
Geolnfomatics

Matching Research Grant
Program

BioGeo Website

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America

Receiving
Organization

GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA

GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA

GSA
GSA
GSA

GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA



2010 105,620.00
303,949.05
60,325.00
17,949.34
33,612.17

3,500.00

9,000.00

7,500.00

252,060.00
541,455.56

2011 67,023.18
370,032.50
73,050.00
24,201.31

3,500.00

6,500.00

- 544,306.99

Forest Service - USDA
National Park Service
BLM

USGS

USGS

UsSGs

USGS

USGS

NSF

Forest Service - USDA
National Park Service
BLM

USGS

USGS

USGS

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America

International Year of Planet Earth
Congressional Science Fellow
Annual Meeting Student Travel
Annual Meeting Internet Café

Annual Meeting Hall of Fame
Matching Research Grant
Program

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America

GeoCorps America
Congressional Science Fellow
Annual Meeting Student Travel
Annual Meeting Hall of Fame

GSA
GSA
G5A
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA

GSA

GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA
GSA



Subcommittee on Interior, Environment and Related Agencies
Committee on Appropriations

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself or herself

or on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal
government.

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Patrick J. Natale, P.E.

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

The American Society of Civil Engineers

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 2008?

Yes X No

3. If'your response to question #2 is “Yes,” please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing,

See attachments.

Signature- Date: April 1, 2011




American Society of Civil Engineers

and Affliates
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
I PN S ST
Federal Grantor/Pass - Through Award Federal CFDA / Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Contract Number Expenditures
Major Program - Research and Development:
Ei High mini i
LTTP International Data Anaysis Contest DTFH61-07-P-00265 20.200 54
Department of Labor
Training for Engineers - Crane Safety at Construction Sites SH-17794-08-60-F-51 92,826
U.S. Department of Agriculture .
Wood in Transportation Program 10.673 5,643
SEI Chilean Earthquake Structural Performance Team 10.673 5,000
Total Major Federal Awards 103,423
Other Federal Awards
Intenational Joint Commission - US Section
Review of International Upper Great Lakes Study (IUGLS) 1042-800730 2,746
U.S. Trade and Deve
Structural Fire Resistance of Concrete and Steet Structures 92,725
198,894

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards




American Society of Civil Engineers
and Affiliates

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
[ A

Federal Grantor/Pass — Through Federal CFDA / Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Contract Number Expenditures

Major Program — Research and Development:

U.S. Department of Defense:
Elood Plain Management Services 12.104 $ 62,519

Environmental Protection Agency:
WISE Pre-Standard 66.606 241207

Federal Highway Administration:
Design and Maintenance of Paved Low-Volume

Roads Training Course 20.205 3,000
Enhancing Bridge Performance Workshop 20.205 4675
LTTP International Data Analysis Contest 20.200 7,494

15,170

Department of Commerce:
Support for The Infrastructure Security

Parinership 11.609 10,000

Support for the 2008 Coastal Disasters
Conference 11.473 10,500
20,500

U.S. Department of Agricullure:
Wood in Transportation Program 10.673 13,889
Total Major Federal Awards 353,285
Other Federal Awards:

U.S. Department of Defense.
Productivity Study 12.300 958

U.S, Trade and Development Agency.
Enhancing Engineering Consulting Capacity In
Afghanistan GH058138383 252,981

Totai Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 607,224

16



American Society of Civil Engineers
and Affliates

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal Grantor/Pass - Through Federal CFDA/ Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Contract Number Expenditures

Major Program - Research and Development:

U. 8. Department of Defence:
Flood Plain Management Services 12.104 23,780

International Conference Thialand 25,000

Federal Highway Administration;

LTTP International Data Anaysis Con@est 20.200 2,576
Enhancing Bridge Performance Workshop 20.205 5,324
7,800

Department of Labor
Training for Engineers - Crane Safely at Construction Sites 76,904

U.S. Cepartment of Agriculture

Wood in Transportation Program 10.873 1,349
Total Major Federal Awards ' 134,934
Other Federal Awards
International Join mmission - ectiol '
Review of International Upper Great Lakes Study (IUGLS) 24,401

L.S. Trade and Development Agency
Enhancing Engineering Consulting Capacity in Afghanistan GHD58138383 62,239

Total Expenditure of Federal Awards $ 221,573




Subcommittee on Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government,

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Idaho Rural Water Association

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

Idaho Rural Water Association
(a non-profit non-governmental organization)

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes X No

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing,

All amounts listed were received by Idaho Rural Water Association as a subaward
agreement between Idaho Rural Water Association and National Rural Water
Association. '

$ 233,686 for September 1, 2010 through August 31, 2011

Federal Grant from Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

Training and Technical Assitance fro System Operations and Source Water Planning
Program

$ 204,475 for October 1, 2009 through August 15, 2010

Federal Grant from Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

Training and Technical Assitance fro System Operations and Source Water Planning
Program




$ 100,187 for April 1, 2010 through March 31, 2011
Federal contract from U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)
USDA Source Water Protection Program

$ 100,187 for April 1, 2009 through March 31, 2010
Federal contract from U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA)
USDA Source Water Protection Program

$ 224,500 for August I, 2010 through July 31, 2011
Federal Grant from Rural Utilities Service (RUS)
Wastewater Programs #1 & 2

$ 207,500 for August 1, 2009 through July 31, 2010
Federal Grant from Rural Utilities Service (RUS)
Wastewater Programs #1 & 2

$ 214,400 (annually) for June 1, 2009 through October 31, 2009 and November 1, 2009
through October 31, 2010

Federal contract from Rural Utilities Service (RUS)

ARRA Circuit Rider Programs #1 and 2

Signature: _ Date: 4/11/11




[Insert Subcommittee Name Here]

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government.

Your Name, Businéss Address, and Telephone Number:
Conrad Anker

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

Land and Water Conservation Fund Coalition

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes No

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing.

Signature;

Date: 3 M/M{/f% ol /




House Sub Committee on Environment, Interior and Related Agencies

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government.

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Jim Blomiuist

. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s} you are representing. :
The Wilderness Land Trust
P.O. Box 1420
Carbondale, Colorado 81623

. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes X No

. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of cach grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing.

Bureau of Land Management, multiple contracts with The Wilderness Land Trust,
Land Acquisition - '

RECIEVED: $4,133,768 DONATED: $2,306,603 TOTAL: $6,440,271
United States Forest Service, multiple contracts with The Wilderness Land Trust,
Land Acquisition -

RECEIVED: $702,252  DONATED: $586,500 TOTAL: $1,288,752
National Park Service, single contract with The Wilderness Land Trust

Land Acquisition —

RECEIVED: $288,000 TOTAL: $288,000

Signature: - Date: March 28, 2011




fInsert Subcommittee Name Here]

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government,

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Alan Rowsome
The Wilderness Society

Washington, DC 20036

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

The Wilderness Society

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes No

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing.

Signature:

Date: 3/2_(‘,!1‘




Subcommittee on Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization other than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government.

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Thomas C. Kiernan, President
Nation s Conservation Association

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

National Parks Conservation Association

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes No

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing.

Please see attached document

Date: )/ 2—‘?/ "

Signature:



National Parks Conservation Association - Grants or Contracts as of March 25,
2011 ,

2008
DOI NPS, National Capital Region $15,000

DOI NPS, Katmai NP $15,000

2009
DOI NPS, Crown of the Continent $60,000
DOI NPS, Katmai - $6,750.00

2010
DOI NPS, Katmai - $36,450.00



[Insert Subcommittee Name Here]

Witness Disclosure Form

Clause 2(g) of rule XI of the Rules of the House of Representatives requires non-
governmental witnesses to disclose to the Committee the following information. A
non-governmental witness is any witness appearing on behalf of himself/herself or
on behalf of an organization gther than a federal agency, or a state, local or tribal

government,

Your Name, Business Address, and Telephone Number:

Thomas J. Cassidy, Jr.
Director of Federal Land Programs
The Nature Conservancy

Arliniton, VA 22207

1. Are you appearing on behalf of yourself or a non-governmental organization? Please
list organization(s) you are representing.

I am appearing on behalf of The Nature Conservancy.

2. Have you or any organization you are representing received any Federal grants or
contracts (including any subgrants or subcontracts) since October 1, 20087

Yes

3. If your response to question #2 is “Yes”, please list the amount and source (by agency
and program) of each grant or contract, and indicate whether the recipient of such
grant or contract was you or the organization(s) you are representing.

The Nature Conservancy receives a number of federal grants and awards, I have attached
a copy of The Nature Conservancy’s Financial Statement and Schedule of Federal
Awards and Report in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 for the year ended June 30,
2010.




Date:
March 31, 2011




The Nature Conservancy

Financial Statements and Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and Report

In Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 Thereon
For the year ended June 30, 2010

EIN 53-0242652
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PRICEAATERHOUSE( QOPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1800 Tysons Boulevard

. MclLean VA 22102-4261
Report of Independent Auditors Telephone (703) 818 3000

Facsimiie (703) 918 3100
To the Board of Directors of
The Nature Conservancy

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and the related
consolidated statements of activities and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Nature Conservancy (the Conservancy) as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Conservancy's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audit of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
Ganeral of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes exarmining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6,
2010, on our consideration of the Conservancy's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2010. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Audifing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a wheole. The schedule of functional expenses for the year ended June 30, 2010 with summarized totals
for the year ended June 30, 2009 and schedules of indirect cost rate computations are presented for
purpeses of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended June 30, 2010 is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic
consolidated financial statements. Such information has been subjected fo the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Ve wadomwor Crepinr” Wiy

December 6, 2010



The Nature Conservancy
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30, 2010 and 2009

{Amounts in thousands)

Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investments
Notes receivable - current
Government grants receivable
Pledges receivable - current
Deposits on land
Other deposits and other current assets

Total current assets

Notes receivable - long-term
Pledges receivable - long-term, net
Investments held for conservation projects
Trade lands
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation
and amortization
Planned giving investments
Endowment investments
Conservation lands
Conservation easements
Total assets

Continued

2010 2009

$ 31339 § 14120
36,603 39,200
1,861 8,578

501 525

31,427 27923
80,739 59,889
57,250 56,964
29298 17,239
269,018 224,438
10,502 10,093
60,438 59,233
537,204 466,277
16,625 16,618
101,111 95,970
246,571 230,524
891,326 837,302
1,892,328 2,157,385
1,639,636 1,539,065

$ 5664759 § 5637205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2



The Nature Conservancy
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30, 2010 and 2009

(Amounts in thousands) 2010 2009
Liabilities
Current kabilities
Accounts payable § 13121 % 9446
Accrued salaries and vacation liability 20,408 20437
Refundable advances 51,340 51,483
Other accrued liabilities - cutrent 18,190 17,285
Current maturities of long-term debt 104,156 248,000
Deferred revenue - current 24,961 21,640
Total current liabilities 232,176 368,291
Long-term debt, less current maturities 346,292 216,828
Accrued liabilities - long-term 46,397 287,358
Deferred revenue - long-term 12,466 12,996
Planned giving liability 133,237 128,081
Total liabilities 770,568 1,013,554
Net assets
Unrestricted
Undesignated - (28,825) (41,091)
Board-designated
Land, easements, and project funds 3441919 3,269,676
Quasi endowment and similar funds 687,951 655,522
4,101,045 3,884,107
Temporarily restricted 504,529 458,145
Permanently restricted 288,617 281,399
Total net assets ' 4,894,191 4,623,651
Total liabilities and net assets $ 5664759 § 5637205

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Nature Conservancy
Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2010

(Amounts in thousands)

Support and revenues
Contributions for cperations
Contributions for land, land preservation fund, and other
conservation projects
Contributions to endowments and similar funds
Contributions of goods and services
Mitigation and contracts
Government grants
Land and easements contributed for conservation
Contributions of trade lands
Investment returns
Change in value of planned giving investments
Royalties, fees, and other
Total support and revenues before sales of
conservation land and easements and
net assets released from restrictions

Sales of conservation land and easements to
governments and others

Net assets released from restrictions
Total support and revenues

Expenses
Program expenses
Conservation activities and actions
Book value of conservation land and easements sold or
donated to governments and others
Total program expenses

Support services expenses
General and administration
Fund-rajsing
General fund-raising
Membership developinent
Total support services expenses
Total expenses

Increase in pet assets
Net assets at beginning of year
Net assets at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  restricted restricted Total
$ 107,720 % 59,758 % - % 167478
76,731 121,675 559 198,965
95 8,667 6,659 15,421
11,758 - - 11,758
24,886 - - 24,886
138,135 - - 138,135
83,726 - - 83,726
3,366 723 - 4,089
145,806 24,133 - 169,939
- 1,950 - 1,950
25,063 - - 25,063
617,286 216,906 7,218 841,410
148,783 - - 148,783
170,522 (170,522) . .
936,591 46,384 7,218 990,193
349,101 - 349,101
200,476 - - 200,476
549,577 - - 549.577
98,683 B - 98,683
53,880 - - 53,880
17,513 - . 17,513
170,076 - - 170,076
719,653 - - 719,653
216,938 46,384 7,218 270,540
3,884,107 458,145 281,399 4,623,651
3 4,101,045 § 504529 % 288,617 $4,894,191




The Nature Conservancy
Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2009

Temporarily Permanently

{Amounts in thousands) Unrestricted  restricted restricted Total

Support and revenues )
Contributions for operations $ 090687 § 60,557 % - % 160,244
Contributions for lantd, land preservation fund, and other

conservation projects 93,482 131,848 340 226,170

Contributions to endowments and similar funds 303 5,830 11,213 17,846
Contributions of goods and services 12,538 - - 12,538
Mitigation and contracts 36,733 - - 36,733
Government grants 126,915 - - 126,915
Land and easements contributed for conservation 115,655 - - 115,655
Contributions of trade lands 7,007 389 - 7,396
Investment returns {283,725) (36,934) - (320,659)
Change in value of planged giving investments - {(47,813) - (47.813)
Rayalties, fees, and other 25,655 - - 25,655

Total support and revenues before sales of
conservation land and easements and
net assets released from restrictions 234,750 113,877 12,053 360,680

Sales of conservation land and easements to

governments and others 186,543 - - 186,543
Net assets released from restrictions 195,580 (195,580) - -
Total support and revenues 616,873 (81,703) 12,053 547,223
Expenses
Program expenses

Conservation activities and actions 386,690 - - 386,690

Bock value of conservation land and easements sold or
donated to governments and others 257,785 - - 257,785
Total program expenses 644,475 - - 644,475

Support services expenses

(General and administration 103,869 - - 103,869
Fund-raising
General fund-raising 58,293 - - 58,293
Membership development 17,784 - - 17,784
Total support services expenses 179,946 - - 179,946
Total expenses 824,421 - - 824,42}
Increase (decrease) in net assets (207,548) (81,703) 12,053 (277,198)
Reclassifications (3,665) - 3,665 -
Increase in net assets (211,213) (81,703) 15,718 (277,198)
Net assets at beginning of year 4,095,320 539,848 265,681 4,900,849
Net assets at end of year $ 3,884,107 § 458,145 § 281,399 $4,623,651

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Nature Conservancy
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

{Amounts in thousands) 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 270540 § (277,198)
Adjustments to reconcile the increase (decrease) m net assets to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Contributions restricted for:
Investment m endowment , {6,659) {11,213)
Investment in land preservation fund and other capital projects (559) (840)
Contributions of trade lands (4,089) (7,396)
Land and easements contributed for conservation (83,726) {115,655)
Loss on trade land sales/valuations 2,290 1,130
Loss on sales of conservation land and easements 51,693 71,242
Depreciation and amortization 5,656 51717
Realized/Unrealized investment {gains) losses {149,950 320,659
Change in value of planned giving invesiments (1,950) 47,813
Changes in:
Restricted cash 2,597 -
Government grants receivable (3,504) (3,574)
Pledges receivable ' {22055) {5,735)
Deposits on land (286) (49,579)
Other deposits and other current assets {12,059) (7,141)
Accounts payable 3,675 {4.464)
Accrued salaries and vacation liability (29 (114)
Refundable advances (143) 10,956
Other accrued Habilities 5,044 249342
Deferred revenue ©2,791 (293)
Planned giving liability 3,156 (12,948)
Additional cash provided by (used in) land activities:
Proceeds from sales of conservation land and easements 148,783 186,543
Purchases of conservation land and easements (204,488) (628,012)
Proceeds from sales of rade lands 5,462 3,255
Purchases of of trade lands - (193)
Net cash provided by (used ) operating activities $ 19090 § (228238)
Continued

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Nature Conservancy
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009

(Amounts in thousands)

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchases of investments

Issuance of notes receivable

Proceeds from notes receivable
Increase in planned giving investments
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Decrease in restricted cash
Proceeds from contributions restricted for:
Investment in endowment
Investment i land preservation fund and other capital projects
Principat payments on debt
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Payments of financing costs
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental data
Interest paid
Seller debt-financed land acquisitions
Income taxes paid
Decrease in accrued liabilities for land acquired on behalf of,
and transferred to, the U.S. Federal Government

2010 2009

$ 1,330,537  $ 1238058
(1307311)  (1,038,771)
(2,194) (2,593)

1,809 5,158
(5.307) (2,376)
(11417) (1,433)
6,117 198,043

- 561

6,659 11213

559 840
(250,156) (96,183)
235,776 118,963
(826) -
(7,983) 35,394
17219 5,199
14,120 8921

§ 31339 § 14120
$ 17876 $ 16120
153 963

283 244
(250,000) -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

1.

Organization

The Nature Conservancy (The Conservancy) is a global conservation organization. The mission of
The Conservancy is to preserve plants, animals, and natural communities that represent the diversity
of life on Earth by protecting the lands and waters they need to survive. The Conservancy conducts
its activities throughout the United States, Canada, Latin America, the Caribbean, Africa, Asia, and
the Pacific.

The Conservancy’s primary sources of revenue are contributions from the public (including gifts of
land), investment income, government grants, and sales of conservation interests to government
agencics or other conservation buyers. These resources are used to conserve portfolios of functional
conservation areas within and across ecoregions and 1o pursue pragmatic solutions to conservation
challenges. Through this portfolio approach, The Conservancy works with partners — including
indigenous communities, governments and businesses — to conserve a variety of ecological systerns
and species.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all The Conservancy’s chapters and
affiliates, both domestic and international, including those which are separately incorporated,
receive gifts, and perform conservation activities in the name of The Conservancy. All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Basis of financial statement presentation
The consolidated financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting,

Classification of net assets
The Conservancy’s net assets have been grouped into the following three classes:

® Permanently restricted net assets — Contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by
The Conservancy is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that the principal must be
maintained permanently by The Conservancy.

* Temporarily restricted net assets — Contributions and other inflows of assets whose use by
The Conservancy is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by passage of
time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of The Conservancy, such as usage for
specific programs, including certain overhead and indirect costs, or for spending from true
endowment investment income.

. Unrestricted net assets — Revenues derived from dues, unrestricted contributions,
government grants and contracts, investment income (other than the temporarily resiticted
portion of true endowment investment income), and other inflows of assets whose use by The
Conservancy is not limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Certain unrestricted net assets have
been designated by the Board of Directors to be maintained as land, easements, land
preservation funds (for the purchase of conservation land), other conservation project funds,
and quasi endowment funds.



The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or fewer when purchased are
considered to be cash equivalents, Restricted cash represents monies held in trust related to
requirements of specific conservation project agreements.

Concentration of credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks held in accounts in the United States of America
and 29 foreign countries. The cash in foreign accounts is uninsured, but is limited per country to
amounts deemed immaterial by management,

The Conservancy invests its excess cash with high quality financial institutions, the largest
concentrations of which are invested in U.S. Agencies (85.7%) and corporate repurchase
agreements (14.1%) backed by .S, Treasury securities. Pursuant to the Conservancy’s investment
policy, the investments described below cannot have more than 10% of their assets in securities of
any one issuet, be they short-term or long-term, other than the U.S. Government. At June 30, 2010,
the single largest non-U.S. Government issuer exposure was 0.5% of the total portfolio.

Investments :

Investments are carried at estimated fair market value on the consolidated statements of financial
position. Fair values of investments are estimated based on quoted market prices where available.
Fair values for certain private equity and real estate investments held through limited partnerships or
commingled fund shares or planned giving investments held in trust by third party trustees are
estimated by the respective external investment managers if market values are not readily
ascertainable. These valuations necessarily involve assumptions and estimation methods that are
reviewed by The Conservancy, and actual valuations could differ from those estimates. Investments
may include some short term investments which consist primarily of money market funds and other
short term investments temporarily held by investment managers or held for a specific purpose. The
Conservancy’s investments consist of the following:

» Investments — Short-term investments of working capital.

s Investments held for conservation projects — Funds for the acquisition of conservation land,
easements, and for funding other conservation projects.

e  Planned giving investments — Planned giving investments are donations that are held in trust
by The Conservancy or third party trustees, representing beneficial interests in trusts. Planned
giving investments are recorded at current fair value or at an estimated fair value based on the
latest available information. Income earned on the invested funds is payable to the donor or
the donor’s designee for a specified period of time or until the donor’s death, after which time
The Conservancy may use the investments for operations or a restricted use specified by the
donor. The Conservancy utilizes an IRS-approved anmuity table to actuarially calculate the
ligbility associated with the estimated lead payments where The Conservancy is the trustee.
The Conservancy determines the discount rate to be used in the month the planned giving
arrangements are entered into with the donor and these rates have ranged from 2.0 to 9.5%.
The present value of the actuarially determined liability resulting from these gifts is recorded
at the date of gift. The remaining portion of the gift is recorded as temporarily restricted
revenue,



The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

*  Endowment investments — Funds held as long-term capital to generate income for The
Conservancy’s operations.

Land and Land Interests

The Conservancy records land and land interests at cost, if purchased, or at fair value at the date of
acquisition, if all or part of the land was received as a donation. Fair value is generally determined
by appraisal. These assets fall into three primary categories:

o  Trade lands — real property with minimal ecological value. These properties are sold to
provide funds for The Conservancy to carry out its conservation work.

. Conservation lands — real property with significant ecological value. These propertics are
either managed in an effort to protect the natural biological diversity of the property, or
transferred to other organizations who will manage the lands in a similar fashion.

s  Conservation easemenis — intangible assets comprised of listed rights and/or restrictions over
the owned property that are conveyed by a property owner to The Conservancy, almost always
in perpetuity, in order to protect the owned property as a significant natural area, as defined in
federal regulations. These intangible assets may be sold or transferred to others so long as the
assignee agrees to catry out, in perpetuity, the conservation purposes intended by the original
grantor.

With the exception of trade lands, which are assets held for sale and are carried at the lower of cost
or fair market value less costs to sell, land and land interests are reported at the original book value.
Upon sale or gift, the book value of the land or land interest is removed as an asset from the
consolidated statement of financial position and reported as a program expense. The related
proceeds, if any, are reported as revenue in the consolidated statement of activities. The majority of
land sales and gifts relate to transfers of real property. Conservation easements, by their very
nature, do not generate material amounts of cash inflow annually.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost, The Conservancy’s minimum capitalization threshold is
$50,000. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the lives of the
respective assets are expensed as incurred. When assets are retired or sold, the related cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any loss on retirement or gain or loss
on disposal of the individual assets is recorded as revenue or expense.

Depreciation and amortization is provided using the straight-line method for all depreciable assets
over their estimated future lives as follows:

Building and improvements 5—30 years

Computer equipment and software 3 -5 years

Furniture, fixtures, and other 4 — 25 years
Contributions

Unconditional donor promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date that
there is sufficient verifiable evidence documenting that a promise was made by the donor and
received by The Conservancy. The promises are reporied as either temporarily or permanently

10



The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

restricted support if received with donor stipulations that sufficiently limit the use of the donated
assets,

When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricied net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets
and are reported on the consolidated statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and contracts

The Conservancy receives grants and contracts from federal, state, and local agencies, as well as
from private organizations, to be used for specific programs or land purchases. For government
grants and contracts, the excess of reimbursable expenditures over cash receipts is included in
government grants receivable and any excess of cash receipts over reimbursable expenditures is
included in deferred revenue. For private mitigation and other contracts, any excess of cash receipts
over reimbursable expenditures is included in deferred revenue.

The Conservancy’s costs incurred under its government grants and contracts are subject to audit by
government agencies. Management believes that disallowance of costs, if any, would not be
material to the consolidated financial position or consolidated changes in net assets of The
Conservancy.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Specifically, $56,964,000 in deposits on land and $51,483,000 in refundable advances have been
reclassified from deposits and other current assets and from other accrned liabilities — current,
respectively, and $39,200,000 in restricted cash has been reclassified from long-term to current in
the accompanying statements of financial position.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For the year ended June 30, 2010, The Conservancy adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards codification (ASC) 105-10, FASB Codification (“the Codification™).
The codification is the single source of authoritative accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAP”). Accordingly, references to GAAP have been updated.

Effective July 1, 2009, The Conservancy adopted the FASB’s guidance regarding Investments in
Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent) as described in the
note on fair value of financial instruments,

Effective July 1, 2009, The Conservancy adopted the FASB’s guidance regarding Disclosures about

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as described in the note on long-term debt and
derivatives,

1



The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

3.

Fair value of financial instruments

Effective July 1, 2008, The Conservancy adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
(FASB) guidance regarding Fair Value Measurements, which addresses aspects of the expanding
application of fair value accounting. The guidance defines fair value, establishes a consistent
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements. The guidance, among other things, requires The Conservancy to maximize the use
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The
guidance requires disclosure of the level within the fair value hierarchy in which fair value
measurements in their entirety fall, segregating fair value measurements using quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1), significant other observable inputs (Level
2), and significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). A financial instrument's categorization within
the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financiai Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

The following tables present the financial instruments carried at fair value as of June 30, 2610 and
2009, by caption on the statement of financial position by the valuation hierarchy defined above:

(In thousands) 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tetal
Investments:
Shon-terminvestments $ 25711 § 2,139 § -8 27916
Fixed income:
U.S. treasuries 18,044 - - 18,044
Asset-backed securities - 13,527 - 13,527
Corporate debt i - 63,530 - 63,530
Mortgage-backed securities - 11,323 - 11,323
U.S. agency bonds - 161,346 - 161,346
Converiible securities - 3,787 - 3,787
Public equity:
Retail and wholesale 64,952 - - 64,952
Financial services 56,628 - - 56,628
Technology 61,713 - - 61,713
Health care 23,428 - - 23,428
Energy 27,849 - - 27,849
Transportation and utilities 6,982 - - 6,982
Other services 25,651 - - 25,651
Other industries 39,182 - . 39,182
Conmingled equity funds - - 330,402 330,402
Mutual funds 92,350 - - 92,350
Closed end mutual funds 48,263 - - 48.263
Hedge funds - - 208,823 208,823
Private equity - - 142,986 142,986
Split interests, trusteed 78,790 120,832 12,584 212,206
Split interests, non-trusteed - - 36,074 36,074
Total investments $ 569600 % 376484 % 730862 § 1,676,962
Pledges receivable 3 14L,177 % 141,177
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps payable $ 41,916 3 41,916
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

(In thousands) 2009
Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Investments:
Short-term investments 3 500 § 40,891 % - % 41,391
Fixed income:
U.S. treasuries 57,961 - - 57,961
Commercial paper - 6,197 - 6,197
Assei-backed securities - - 6,081 6,081
Corporate debt - 32,388 - 32,388
Mortgage-backed securities - - 7,089 7,089
U.S, agency honds - 66,157 “ 66,157
Convertible securitics - 503 - 593
Public equity:
Retail and wholesale 58,178 - - 58,178
Financial services 51,514 - - 51,514
Technology 43,859 - - 43,859
Health care 29,877 - - 20,877
Energy 21,128 - - 21,128
Transportation and utilities 9,826 - - 9,826
Other services 54,554 - “ 54,554
Other industries 15,463 - - 15,463
Commingled equity funds - - 239,453 239453
Mutual funds 134,137 - 4412 138,549
Closed end mutual funds 34,985 - - . 34,985
Hedge funds - - 264,799 264,799
Private equity - - 121,916 121,916
Split interests, trusteed 81,685 115173 9,944 206,802
Split interests, non-trusteed - - 34,221 34,221
Total investments 3 593,667 § 261,399 % 687915 § 1542981
Pledges receivable 3 119,122 % 119,122
Liabilities:
Interest rate swaps payable b 32,564 b 32,564

Following is a description of The Conservancy's valuation methodologies for assets and liabilities
measured at fair value.

Fair value for Level 1 is based upon quoted prices in active markets that The Conservancy has the
ability to access for identical assets and liabilities. Market price data is generally obtained from
exchange or dealer markets. The Conservancy does not adjust the quoted price for such assets and
liabilities.

Fair value for Level 2 is based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and on model-based
valuation techniques, for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets. Inputs are
obtained from various sources including market participants, dealers, and brokers.
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Fair value for Level 3 is based on valuation techniques that use significant inputs that are
unobservable as they trade infrequently or not at all.

Investments included in Level 3 primarily consist of The Conservancy's ownership in alternative
investments (principaily limited partnership interests in hedge and private equity funds) as well as
public equity investments held within private arrangements, The value of certain alternative
investments represents the ownership interest in the net asset value (NAV) of the respective
partnership.  Approximately 79% of Level 3 investments held by the partnerships consist of
marketable securities and 21% are securities that do not have readily determinable fair values. The
fair values of the securities held by limited partnerships that do not have readily determinable fair
values are determined by the general partner and are based on appraisals, or other estimates that
require varying degrees of judgment. If no public market exists for the investment securities, the
fair value is determined by the general partner taking into consideration, among other things, the
cost of the securities, prices of recent significant placements of securities of the same issuer, and
subsequent developments concerning the companies to which the securities relate. The
Conservancy has performed significant due diligence around these investments to ensure NAV is an
appropriate measure of fair value as of June 30, 2010.

Interest rate swaps are valued using both observable and unobservable inputs, such as quotations
received from the counterparty, dealers or brokers, whenever available and considered reliable. In
instances where models are used, the value of the interest rate swap depends upon the contractual
terms of, and specific risks inherent in, the instrument as well as the availability and reliability of
observable inputs. Such inputs include market prices for reference securities, yield curves, credit
curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates, assumptions for nonperformance risk, and
correlations of such inputs. The Conservancy’s interest rate swap arrangements have inputs which
can generally be corroborated by market data and are therefore classified within Level 2.

Split interest agreements where The Conservancy is not the trustee are valued at the present value of
the future distributions expected to be received over the term of the agreement. There is no market
for these agreements and they are therefore classified within Level 3,

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while The Conservancy believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain finrancial instraments could
result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date.

Effective July 1, 2009, The Conservancy adopted the FASB’s guidance regarding Investments in
Certain Entities That Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent), which amended the
FASB’s guidance on Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures - Overall, to provide a practical
expedient in estimating the fair value of cerfain altemative investments. Under the practical
expedient, entities are permitted to use NAV without adjustment for investments within the scope of
the guidance.
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value at June 30, 2010 are as follows:

(In thousands) Unfunded Redemption Redemption
Fair Value Commitments Frequency Notice Period
Global equity funds 3 138453 § - Weekly, monthly, Same day, 10 or 30
quarterly business days
International equity funds 191,949 - Monthiy 6 business days, on
15th of prior month
Hedge funds 208,823 - Monthly, quartedly, 45 - 90 days,
rolling 2,3 & S5years 3 -4 months
Private equity funds 141,737 92,980 N/A N/A
Total $ 680962 % 92,980

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

The following are roilforwards of the statement of financial position amounts for financial
instruments classified by The Conservancy within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy defined above
as of June 30, 2010 and 2009:

{In thousands) 2010
) Fair value Net realized Net Net transfers Fair value
as of andunrealized purchases into (out of) as of

July 1,2009 gains (losses)  and{sales) Lewl 3 June 30,2010
Asset and mortgage-backed

securities £ 13070 s - 8 - 8 (13,170) § -
Commingled equity funds 239,453 42,111 23,838 25,000 330,402
Mutual funds 4,412 (I3 (4,399) - -
Hedge funds 264,799 29,235 (85,211) - 208,823
Private equity 121,916 6,255 14,815 - 142,986
Split interests 44,165 (2,939 7,432 - 48,658
Pledges 119,122 22,055 - - 141,177
Total investments and pledges $ 807,037 § 96,704 §  (43525) § 11,830 % 872,046
(In thousands) 2009

Fair value Net realized Net Nettransfers  Fair value
as of and unrealized purchases into as of

July1,2008 gains (losses)  and (sales) Lewel 3 June 30,2009
Asset and mortgage-backed

securities $ 7639 % (6,482) % 12,013 % - 3 13,170
Commingled equity funds 303,400 (61,562 (2,385) - 239,453
Mutual funds - - - 4412 4412
Hedge funds 403,760 (96,215) (54,428) 11,682 264,799
Privatc equity 115,270 (18,516} 25,162 - 121,916
Split interests 45375 (1,210 - - 44,165
Pledges 113,387 5,735 - 119,122

Totalinvestments and pledges § 988,831 § (178250) § (19,638) § 16,094 % 807,037
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

All net realized and unrealized gains (losses) in the tables above are reflected in the accompanying
staternent of activities and are reported in revenues as follows for the years ended June 30, 2010 and
2009, with the exceptions of a $3,500,000 decrease in pledges reported in conservation activities
and actions program expense for the year ended June 30, 2019 and a $621,000 decrease in split
interests reflected in the accompanying statement of financial position as a decrease in the planned
giving liability as of June 30, 2010:

{In thousands) 20140
Contributions
for land, land
preservation fund, Change in
and other value of
conservation Imestment  planned giving
projects returns investments

Total gains (losses) included in changes in
net assets $ 25555 § 77,588 % (2,318)

Unrealized gains (losses) included in changes

in net assets relating to assets stifl held $ 25,555 $ 42600 % (2,318)
{In thousands) 2009
Contributions
for land, land
preservation fund, Change in
and other value of
conservation Investment  planned giving
projects returns investments

Total gains (losses) included in changes in
net assets $ 5735 % (182,775) § (1,210)

Unrealized gains (losses)included in changes
in net assets relating to assets still held $ 5,735 $ (181,602) § (1,210)

4.  Notes receivable
Notes receivable relate primarily to sales of land by The Conservancy. Notes receivable are

recorded annuaily at their net realizable value. Maturities range from 1 to 19 vears with varying
interest rates from 0 to 10.0%. Default interest rates may be higher.
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5

Pledges receivable

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, unconditional promises to give were as follows:

(in thousands) 2010 2009
Amounts due in
Less than one year § 80,739 $§ 59889
One to five years 66,425 61,520
More than five years 907 1,349
Subtotal 148,071 122,758
Less fair value adjustments:
Discount o present value 3394 3,636
Allowance for doubtful accounts 3,500

$ 141,177 § 119,122

Pledges receivable greater than one year in time are discounted at the prime interest rate, 3.25% at
June 30, 2010 and 2009. As a result of adopting the FASB’s Fair Value Measurements guidance,
including the Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, the discount rate used
in the present value technique to determine fair value of pledges receivable is revised at each
measurement date to reflect current market conditions and the creditworthiness of donors. In
addition, management evaluates payment history and market conditions to estimate allowances for
doubtful pledges. Changes in the fair value of pledges receivable are reported in the statement of
activities as contribution revenue except for changes in the allowance which are reported as
program expenses at each subsequent reporting date. Pledges receivable past due by 90 days is
immaterial.

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, The Conservancy received promises to give totaling approximately
$51,604,000 and $56,887,000, respectively, that are conditioned upon The Conservancy raising
matching gifts or acquiring certain conservation lands. Conditional promises to give are recognized
as contributions when the donor-imposed conditions are substantially met.
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6.

Investments

Investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009:

(In thousands)

Short term investments
Fixed income - bonds
Equities

Reai estate trusts

Hedge funds

Private equity investmenis
Receivables fromtrusts
Interfund loans

Total investments

(In thousands)

Short term investments
Fixed income - bonds
Equities

Real estate trusts

Hedge funds

Private equity investments
Receivables fromtrusts
Interfund loans

Total investments

2010
Investments
held for Planned
Current conservation giving Endowment
investments projects investments investments Total
) 972 % 83,752 % 4811 § 72915 % 162,450
- 184,430 70,279 29,899 284,608
26 223,186 124,532 481,693 829,437
. - 12,584 - 12,584
- 44,188 - 164,635 208,823
863 38 - 141,737 142 986
- - 36,014 - 36,074
- 1,262 (1,709) 447 -
$ 1,861 § 537,204 § 246,571 % 891,326 § 1,676,962
2009
Inves tments
held for Planned
Current conservation giving Endovwment
investments projects investments investments Total
b 7260 3 160,343 § 14,108 % 3820 § 185,531
- 58,925 65,841 38,377 163,643
4 172,189 116,909 473,525 762,927
- - 9,944 - 9,944
- 66,522 - 198,277 264,799
1,014 199 - 120,703 121,916
- - 34,221 - 34,221
- 8,099 (10,199) 2,100 -
$ 8578 § 466,277 $ 230,824  § 837,302 § 1,542,981

See Note 2 for a description of the classification of The Conservancy’s investments,

Planned giving investments include charitable gift annuities, which must meet certain reserve level
requirements. Due to the volatility in the financial markets, those reserves were required to be
increased with other sources of funds.
planned giving investments were $1,710,000 and $10,200,000 as of June 30, 2010 and 2009,

respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010 and 2009

Planned giving investments include recognition of contribution revenue which is classified as
temporarily restricted contributions to endowments and similar funds. The amount of planned
giving contribution revenue recognized was $8,355,000 and $5,399,000 for the years ended June 30,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

Certain investment managers of The Conservancy use derivatives and currency hedging in order to
manage risks and exposures related to interest rates, security positions, and foreign currency.

Investment returns consisted of the following for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
(In thousands)
Dividends and interest income 5 19989 § 18479
Realized gains (losses) (net of expenses
of $6,639 and $7,202, respectively) 36,513 (78,102)
Unrealized gains (losses) 113,437 (261,036)
Investment returns 3 169939 § (320,659)

7. Restricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes:

2010 2009

(In thousands)
Land acquisition and other conservation projects $ 187924 § 189,748
Time restricted for periods after June 30 147,768 135471
Time and purpose restricted for periods after June 30 96,662 75977
True endowment gains subject to future Board of

Directors appropriation 72,175 56,949
Total $ 504529 $ 458,145

Permanently restricted net assets are restricted in perpetuity; the income derived from these
investments is expendable to support the operations of The Conservancy.

Effective July 1, 2008, The Conservancy adopted the FASB’s guidance regarding Endowments of
Not-for-Profit Organizations: Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an Enacted Version of
the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), and Enhanced Disclosures
for all Endowment Funds. UPMIFA, as enacted by the Council of the District of Columbia, under
which laws The Conservancy is incorporated, and as interpreted by The Conservancy, requires the
preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of donor-restricted endowment
funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. In addition, net appreciation on donor-
restricted endowment funds is required to be classified and reported as temporarily restricted net
assets,
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The Conservancy’s Endowment (Endowment) provides stable financial support to a wide variety of
programs and activities in perpetuity, playing a critical role in enabling The Conservancy to achieve
its mission. Programs supported by the Endowment include restoring, monitoring, and managing
natural areas owned by The Conservancy and others, as well as many other activities and actions
vital to the preservation of natural diversity. The Endowment includes both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors (Board) to function as
endowments. Net assets associated with endowment funds, including Board-designated endowment
funds, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

The Conservancy classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts
donated to the permanent endowment, and (b) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is
added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not
classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until
those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by The Conservancy in a manner consistent with the
standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, The Conservancy considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

* The duration and preservation of the endowment fund;

* The purposes of the institution and the endowment fund;

= General economic conditions;

» The possible effect of inflation or deflation;

= The expected total return from income and appreciation of investments;
a Other resources of the institution; and

= The investment policy of the institution.

Endowment funds are categorized in the following net asset classes as of June 30, 2010 and 2009:
{In thousands} 2010

Temporarily Permanently
Unresfricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ (7.096) % 7,175 % 132,667 § 197,746

Board-designated endowment funds 690,828 - - 690,828
Total endowment funds 3 683,732 § 2,175 % 132,667 § 888,574
{In thousands) 2009
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds 3 987 § 56049  § 126008 % 173,078
Board-designated endowment funds 660,998 - - 660,998
Total endowinent funds 3 651,119 % 56949 § 126,008 § 834,076
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Changes in endowment funds by net asset classification for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009
are summarized as follows:

{In thousands) 2010
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, beginning of year § 651,119 § 56,949 § 126008 § 834076

Investment retums 93,654 24,133 - 117,787

Contributions 95 313 6,659 7,067

Interfund trans fers 5,534 1,213 - 6,747

Other revenue 234 - - 234

Appropriation of assets for expenditure (77,337) - - (77337)
Net assets released fromrestrictions 10,433 (10,433) - -

Total endowment funds $ 683732 § 72,175 % 132667 $ 888574

{in thousands) 2009

Temporarily Permanently
Unresiricfed  Restricted Restricted Total

Endowiment net assets, beginning ofyear § 866,045  § 26,635 § 111,130 $§ 1,073,810

Investment retums (161,040} (36,934) - (197.974)
Contributions 803 430 11,213 12,446
Interfund trans fers 2,851 1,312 - 4,163
Otherrevenue 204 - - 204
Appropriation of assets for expenditure (58,573) - - (58,573)
Net assets released fromrestrictions 4,494 {4,494) - -
Other reclassifications (3,665) - 3,665 -
Total endowment funds $  65LE19 % 56,949 § 126008 § 834076

The total amount of permanently restricted net assets on the consolidated statements of financial
position includes the donor-restricted endowment funds displayed in the above tables, as well as
amounts contributed to create a permanent capital fund. This fund, the land preservation fund, is
used to finance capital projects, and is to be maintained in perpetuity for only this purpose.
Permanently restricted net assets in the land preservation fund were $155,614,000 and $155,355,000
as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Endowments with Eroded Corpus

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires The Conservancy to retain as a
fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with the FASB guidance, deficiencies of this nature that
are reported in unrestricted net assets were $7,096,000 and $9,879,000 as of June 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively. These deficits resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred
shortly after the investment of newly established endowments and authorized appropriation that was
deemed prudent.
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Endowment Investment and Spending Policies

The amount of endowment funds provided each year for operations is established by the Finance
Committee of the Board, through its adoption of an annual endowment spending rate and spending
rate base. The spending rate for the year ended June 30, 2010 was 5.5% of the average fair market
value over the 36 months of calendar years 2008, 2007 and 2006.

In order to maintain the purchasing power of the Endowment, The Conservancy must earn a
nominal rate of return that compensates for both the endowment payout as well as the rate of
inflation. With the current endowment payout of 5.5% and long-term inflation projected at 2.5%,
The Conservancy needs to carn approximately 8% to maintain the purchasing power of the
endowment. The Conservancy also seeks to grow endowment principal beyond inflation, and
therefore strives to produce a premium above 8% over the long term, as discussed below.

The Conservancy has determined asset allocation targets and ranges across a variety of asset classes
which The Conservancy feels acceptable for inclusion in its portfolio. The Conservancy has chosen
not to manage its underlying assets directly, but to utilize independent investment managers. To
maintain prudent diversification and to avoid undue risk, the Conservancy’s portfolio is divided
among 40 to 50 separate managers.

The Conservancy recognizes the difficulty of achieving its potential investment objectives in light
of the uncertainties and complexities of contemporary investment markets. The Conservancy also
recognizes that significant risk must be assumed to achieve long-term investment objectives. In
establishing its investment objectives in light of its risk tolerances, The Conservancy has considered
its ability to withstand short and intermediate term variability and concluded that the portfolio can
tolerate some interim fluctuations in market values and rates of return in order to achieve its
objectives. However, The Conservancy realizes that market performance varies and that the
portfolio’s investment objectives may not be achievable during short-term periods.
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8.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
{In thousands)
Land b 6,580 §$ 6,670
Buiklings and improvements 105,523 99323
Construction in progress 16,130 14,726
Computer equipment and software 1,156 2,521
Furniture, fixtures, and other 12,528 10,346
141,917 133,586
Less - Accumulated depreciation and amortization (40,806) (37,616)
Total $ 10L111 § 95,970

Depreciation and amortization expense was $5,656,000 and $5,177,000 during the years ended June
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Of the total assets listed above, $8,356,000 and $5,493,000 were
fully depreciated at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank
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9.

Long-term debt and derivatives

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009:
(In thousands)

Unsecured borrewings due at various dates through 2012. Interest is payable at
various rates based on LIBOR plus 0.50%, depending on repayment terms; (.85% and
0.82% at June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Unsecured Colorado Educational and Cultural Facilities Authority Tax Exermpt Revenue
Bonds, Series 2002A issued in the original principal amount of $25,053,000 to refund the

Industrial Development Authority of Arlington County (IDA) Tax Exempt Revenue Bonds

Series 1997A and portions of the IDA Revenue Bonds Taxable Series 1997B; fixed
interest rate pursuant to rate swap, 3.56% as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, due July, 2027,

Unsecured Extendable Floating Rate Notes, Taxable Revenue Bonds Series EXLS issued
in the original principal amount of $100,000,000, with a variable interest rate reset
quarterly, originally due October 5, 2009. See mterest rate note below.

Unsecured Taxable Revenue Bonds Series 2009 in the aggregate principal amount of
$100,000,000 issued July 1,2009 to refund the Extended Floating Rate Notes, Taxable
Revenue Bonds Series EXLS on October 5, 2009; fixed rate of 6.30% due July, 2019.

Unsecured Colorado Educational and Culmral Facilities Authority Taxable Revenue
Bonds, Series 2008A issued in the original principal amount of $90,000,000, with a
variable interest rate reset weekly, due July, 2033. See interest rate note below.

Unsecured Colorado Educational and Cultural Facilities Authority Tax Exempt Revenue
Bonds, Series 2003A-TE2008 issued in the original principal amount of $102,400,000,
with a variable interest rate reset weekly, due July, 2033. See interest rate note below.

New York State Environmental Facilities Corporation private bonds issued in the
aggregate amount of $50,000,000 with a fixed interest rate of 3.90%, due June, 2024

Loans and mortgages on land, some of which are collateralized by the land and by a
$202,000 restricted cash account, and payable in monthly instaliments, including interest
vanging from 0% to 8.5%; final payments are due at various dates through 2022.

Other notes payable without interest due on demand

Less - current maturities
Total Long-term Debt
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2010 2009
237§ 8387
22,071 22910
- 100,000
100,000 -
88,180 90,000
98,500 100,500
50,000 -
85,835 137,636
5,625 5,375
450,448 464,828
(104,156) (248,000)
$ 346292 3 216828
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In order to partially insulate itself from the variable nature of the interest rates on much of its
outstanding debt, The Conservancy has two interest rate swap agreements. The Conservancy pays a
fixed rate of 4,373% on $95,375,000 in return for receipt of variable rate interest in the amount of
LIBOR; and 2.962% on $190,000,000 of principal in return for receipt of variable rate interest in the
amount of 67% of LIBOR. The counterparty io these swaps has the option to terminate these swaps
beginaing on July 1, 2010 and thereafter.

The following schedule of amounts due is based on the maturity dates per the debt agreements:

Year ended June 30 (in thousands)
2011 $ 104,156
2012 112,310
2013 71,258
2014 3,733
2015 6,123
Thereafter 152,868

3 450,448

The fzir value of long-term debt, including current maturities, is estimated based on current market
rates offered to or by The Conservancy for similar instruments. Based on a blended borrowing rate
using current market rates as of June 30, 2010 the fair value of long-term debt is approximately
$449,585,000.

Due to the nature of certain variable rate bond agreements, The Conservancy may receive notice of
an optional tender on its variable-rate bonds, in which case The Conservancy would have an
obligation to purchase the bonds tendered if unable to secure alternate financing at that time. The
Conservancy entered into standby purchase agreements with a financial instifution to support the
original principal amount of $192,400,000 of the variable rate demand obligations. Under these
agreements, the financial institution agreed to purchase the bonds if The Conservancy cannot
remarket the bonds at which time the due dates would become accelerated to a three year period.
As a result, The Conservancy has classified an additional $58,222,000 as current maturities of long-
term debt on the consolidated statements of financial position to reflect the potential accelerated
payment schedule.

Interest expense incurred on total debt for 2010 and 2009 was $22,499,000 and $16,467,000,
respectively.

The Conservancy has an unsecured line of credit providing total borrowings as of June 30, 2010 and
2009 of up to $30,000,000 and $50,000,000, respectively. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009 the
balance on the line of credit was $0 and $8,000,000, respectively. Interest is payable at various
rates based on LIBOR plus 0.50%, depending on repayment terms, as of June 30, 2010 and 2009.

Effective July 1, 2009, The Conservancy adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
{FASB) guidance regarding Disclosures about Dervative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
which was an amendment to enhance the disclosure framework in the FASB’s guidance regarding
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The guidance addresses constituent
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10.

11.

concerns about the impact derivative instruments can have on an entity’s financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows.

Fair Value of derivatives consisted of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009:
{In thousands) 2010 2009

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments;
Interest rate contracts - swap agreements
Statement of Financial Position Location:
Accrued Liabilities - long-term $ 41916 § 32,564

Statement of Activities Location:
Investment returmns 3 (9352) 8§ (17,513)

Contributed goods and services

The Conservancy periodically receives contributed professional services from third parties and
recognizes revenue at the fair value of those services. During 2010 and 2009, these services totaled
$7,887,000 and $8,042,000, respectively. In addition, The Conservancy received contributed goods
that totaled $3,871,000 and $4,496,000 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Contributed goods are recorded at fair value on the date of donation. Confributed goods and
services with a fair value of $50,000 or more are capitalized in accordance with The Conservancy’s
capitalization policy. Of the $7,887,000 and §$8,042,000 in contributed services, $57,000 and
$74,000 was capitalized for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Of the
$3,871,000 and $4,496,000 in contributed goods, $107,000 and $0 was capitalized for the years
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Commitments and contingencies

The Conservancy is a party to various litigations arising out of the normal conduct of its operations.
In the opinion of The Conservancy's management, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not
materially affect the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of The Conservancy.

Leases
The Conservancy has entered into noncancelable operating leases for office space, which expire at
various dates through 2019. Certain of these leases contain rent escalation clauses based on the

consumer price index.
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12.

13.

The foliowing is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for all operating leases:

Year ended June 30 {in thousands)
2011 $ 3,898
2012 3,377
2013 2,967
2014 2,469
2015 1,922
Thereafter 2,995
Total minimum lease payments 3 17,628

Rent expense was $11,086,000 and $10,719,000 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Land acquisitions and other commitments
The Conservancy has entered into contracts for the purchase of land and other purchase
commitments that had not closed as of June 30, 2010, in the amount of $181,651,000.

The Conservancy has remaining funding commitments to private equity and hedge fund investments
of $92,980,000 at Tune 30, 2010.

The Conservancy is a party to an agreement whereby under certain circumstances, the Conservancy
may be required to establish a special purpose entity and accept a loan from the other party to the
agreement. The Conservancy would, in turn, secure the loan with a qualified existing asset, and
guarantee repayment of the loan should the special purpose entity fail to perform under the terms of
the loan. The Conservancy believes the likelihood of any significant loss related to this guarantee to
be remote.

Retirement plans

The Conservancy’s employees are eligible after one month of service to participate in The Nature
Conservancy Savings and Retirement Plan (the Plan), in which employees can make voluntary, tax-
deferred contributions within specified limits. The Plan was established under the provisions of
Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k) and has received a favorable determination as to its tax status
from the Internal Reverme Service. As of August 2005, certain employees are also eligible to
participate in a non-qualified deferred compensation plan created pursuant to Internal Revenue
Code Section 457(b). The Conservancy’s contributions to the plans were $10,855,000 and
$11,574,600 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Program expense allocation

Operating expenses are allocated to program and support categories based on separate cost center
types as defined below. Conservation land and easements that are acquired by The Conservancy, but
not sold or donated, are reflected as an increase in conservation land and easements on the
consolidated statements of financial position and are excluded from the program expense categories
on the consolidated statements of activities.
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14,

15,

The Conservancy accounts for its program expenditures in the following categories:

. Conservation Activities and Actions — Expenditures related to the broad spectrum of
activities and actions critical to advancing The Conservancy’s ecoregion-based approach to
conservation. Expenditures related to understanding, monitoring, maintaining, restoring, and
managing natural areas owned by The Conservancy and others are included, as are
expenditures for developing and enhancing The Conservancy’s ability to gather and share
ecological information and to assess and evaluate threats to the elements of natural diversity
within ecoregions in which The Conservancy works. In addition, this area includes
expenditures to mitigate, prevent, or slow the effects of threats to the elements of biodiversity,
including investments in the institutional development of domestic and international
conservation organizations. Expenditures related to improving public land management and
supporting the development of sound global policies, including participating in conferences
and events that help establish a common vision for conservation worldwide. Finally, this
category includes expenditures relating to community outreach and education of key
stakeholders and land users in areas where Conservancy conservation programs reside.

*  General and Administration — Expenditures related to building and maintaining an efficient
business infrastructure, including those related to corporate governance, to support and
advance the programmatic conservation objectives of The Conservancy.

) General Fund-Raising — Expenditures related to fund-raising strategies that provide the
revenue stream for both operations and capital needs to further the accomplishment of The
Conservancy’s mission and objectives.

¢ Membership Development — Expenditures related to the acquisition and retention of The
Conservancy members, primarily through the use of a direct-mail program.

Income taxes

The Conservancy has been granted an exemption from Federal income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has classified The
Conservancy as other than a private foundation. The Conservancy pays a nominal amount of tax
relating to several unrelated business income activities, primarily rental income from debt-financed
property. '

Effective January 1, 2607, The Conservancy adopted the FASB’s guidance related to Accounting

- for Income Taxes and Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. The adoption continues to

have no effect on the consolidated financial statements.
Subsequent events

All subsequent events were evaluated through December 6, 2010.
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Basis of presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards summarizes the federal
expenditures of The Nature Conservancy (the Conservancy) under pregrams of the U.S.
federal government for the year ended June 30, 2010. The amounts reported as federal
expenditures were obtained from the Conservancy's general ledger. Because the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Conservancy, it is not intended to and does not present the
consolidated financial position, changes in net assets and cash flows of the
Conservancy.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes all grants, contracts, and
similar agreements entered into directly between the Conservancy and agencies and
depariments of the U.S. federal government or passed through directly to the
Conservancy through agencies receiving federal funding.

The Conservancy was the recipient of federal funds awarded through the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA). These funds were generated by the federa!
government with the intent to stimulate the American economy, suppiement existing
federal programs and create new programs. There are additional compliance and
reporting matters associated with these awards. These awards are presented in bold
print in the Schedule and the title "ARRA" precedes each award title.

Summary of significant accounting policies

For the purpose of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, expenditures for
federal award programs are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting. Negative
amounts on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are adjustmenis to
expenditures reported in the prior year in the course of normal business. Full CFDA and
passthrough numbers are presented when available.
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

3. Amounts awarded fo subrecipients

The 2010 Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes approximately $9.1
million of subawards made to organizations assisting in project implementation. Of the
federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, The Conservancy provided federal
awards to subrecipients as follows:

| AGREEMENTIDOR ~ - __AMOUNT

. : PROVIDEDTO |
PASETHROUGH® - | susreciPENT

AWARDING AGENCY : CFDA NUMBER PROGRAM TITLEIPRDJECT NAME

FRVIRGNWENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY BPA] TARGETED WATERGHEDS GRANTS

" SURVEYS, STUDIES, INVESTIGATIONS AMD SPEGIAL
PURPDSE GRANTS WITHIN THE OFFICE OF RESEARGCH
_AND DEVELOPMENT

LS AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL EVELOPMENT

: USAID FOREIGN ASSISTANCE FOR PROGRAMSE
usain)

LOVERBEAS e e i
USAID FGREIGN ASSIETANCE FOR PROGRAMS
OVERSEAS o o s e
Us Al FEREIGH ASSIETANCE FOR PROGGRANME
OVERSEAS

.512-A-08-00003 Sub Tatat
i7- 06106-00

fu.sl ABENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT Total
{U.5. DEPARTMENT OF AGRULTURE (USDA)

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY ASSISTANCE
 COOPERATVE FORESTRY ASSISTANCE

" NFFIASHLAND FORESY RESILI

FARM AND RANGH LANDS PROTEGTION PROGRAM

813 2ub Total : L
‘ARRA-10 884 ) . ARRAWILDLIFE FIRE MANAGEMENT
ARRA-10.688 Sub Total :

T osa10604a Ty

Continued
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

i Amount Provided

AGREEMENT ID 1o Subreciaants -

AWARDING AGENCY P CFDA NUMBER PROGRAM TITLEPROJECT NAME
' :COASTAL ZONE MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE (DOC)

NAGENOS 4190173

249 -
1,645,068
1,561,108 .

U8, DEPARTMENT br GOMMERGCE Total ™

MUNITY ECOROMIC ADMISTMENT PLANNING
SSIBTANGE FOR JOINTLAND USE 6TUDIES

U, DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE (POD) 32213

. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE Tota)
- DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR 00 |~

16H AND WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE
Wi £

"8,110,832
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The Nature Conservancy
Schedule of Indirect Cost Rate Computation
For the year ended June 30, 2010

P L

The Nature Conservancy _
;Schedule of indirect cost rate calcutation
iFor the year ended June 30,2010

e Rudted 77 Gnaliowablel 77 Aliowable indirect

balance i Costs | I costs '

*Sataries 42,084,973 | $! . 42,084,973

‘Fringe benefits - e iBasvean | T 18360230

it o SO s o vy

[Supplies and communications 4rmaslr "’ N  4TT3ET

iffé_‘;é’ S L | s 1780951 .
Equpment 1191855 T 1191855
‘Unallow able and exciusions 5,930,475 - 5,930,475 ;
e Ty oso0s0837° 3, 5930475: . § 89,120,362 |

g ks

11,371,848 °

i

ol

“Totai operating and fand fund expenses per audited tial ;
_...718,365,686 '

_balance

o™ . S .
. Beclusions b )

“Total indirect costs ’
Distribution base (direct costs)

Indirect cast rata e
g(AIIowabIe [ndirect costs/distribution base) ;

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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The Nature Conservancy
Schedule of Fringe Benefit Rate Calculation
For the year ended June 30, 2010

: . it T Fri fit @ ]

Frivnxpee:::e-m . { . Fringe benefit © = | "enxgp::::e: ! : %

! Fringe benefit account regular . ;::r"?nsr: -[:hort-— torelgn Total .
employees i emp yeasj% employeas

ACCRUED VACATION 11,743,022 ¢ §$ e 11,743, 922

SICK LEAVE EXPENSE 4 315,041 20,839 ’ 4335 740

‘HOLIDAY & ADMNISTRATIVE LEAVE
{EXPENSE

‘MLITARY LEAVE
{MEDICAL INSURANCE CLAIMS, FEES AND:

. 8,865,670

i??ﬁ:?ﬂai

L3288

PREMUMS et e 15,794,302 15,794,302
LIFE INSURANCE " 280,757 280,757
ACCIDENTAL DEATHAND T
 DISMEMBERMENT o 73421 )

'DISABLITY INSURANCE 472662 2!
“WORKERS' COMPENSATION 7 1195264' 23268 1,218,532
{FICA 12,931,035 ° 251,730 . ..13,182,765'
IPENSION 401(K) ~ 51822 10,826,080,

STATE UNEMPLOYMENT TAXES - . 3zt 1,786,745}
452,406

1,344,167

FOREGN OTHER SOCIAL AND WELFARE

[ TAXES o 266,830,
.FORBGNALICO 401 RLAN ) 1,080,626
‘EMPLOYEERELOCATION 11,670,116 1,670,116,

PROFESSDNAL FEES 1,276,907 1,276,907

‘TOTAL'#WNGéééu'EF'rr EXPENSE 1§, 69,678,765 414,193 72,684,681

ITOTAL SALARES EXPENSE 159,558,717 3,106,153 182,940,978 |

FRINGE BENEFIT EXPENSEAS A : o o Co o
P ! P B H .7

PERCENTAGE OF SALARIES EXPENSE | B81%. P 39.15%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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The Nature Conservancy
Notes to the Schedules of Indirect Cost Rate Computations

Exclusions in indirect cost rate calculation

Certain items are excluded from the computation of the total direct cost base because
their inclusion distorts the assessment of indirect costs. Exclusions include external
transfers of land and the value of land sold or donated tc government agencies and
other conservation organizations. Equipment costs valued between $5,000 and $50,000
are included in the base limited to the first year of capitalization.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left biank
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(QOPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1800 Tysons Boulevard

McLean VA 22102-4261
Tetephone (703) 918 3000
Facsimile (703) 918 3100

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Gevernment Auditing Standards

To The Board of Directors of
The Nature Conservancy

We have audited the financial statements of The Nature Conservancy (the Conservancy) as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our report thereon dated December 6, 2010. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reperting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Conservancy's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Conservancy's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Conservancy's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinaticn of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 2 material misstatement
of the Conservancy's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Conservancy’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express

6l



such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Conservancy in a separate |etter
dated December 6, 2010.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Conservancy's management, Board of

Directors, audit committee, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/Vuf\&wm\/wwadnww w'e

December 6, 2010
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseGoopers LLP
1800 Tysons Boulevard

McLean VA 22102-4261
Telephone (703) 818 3000
Facsimile (703) 818 3100

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance with Requirements
That Could Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Contro!
Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Directors of
The Nature Conservancy

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of The Nature Conservancy (the Conservancy) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Suppfement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2010. The Conservancy's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs
is the responsibility of the Conservancy's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Conservancy's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
- Audifing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred fo above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the Conservancy's compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Conservancy's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Conservancy complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2010. However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of
noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item 2010-2.

loternal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Conservancy is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over comptliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to
faderal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Conservancy’s internal
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
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OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Conservancy's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employeas, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and comect noncompiiance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencles, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal controt that
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider
to be significant deficiencies as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as items 2010-1 and 2010-2. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, ar combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a fype of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit the attention of those charged with governance.

The Conservancy's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Conservancy's responses and,
accordingly, we express no opinian on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, the

audit committee, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

January 6, 2011
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS



The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified? —— YESs

no

s Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not S
considered to be material weaknesses?

none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements yes

noted?

olala

nQ

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

* Material weakness(es) identified? . Yyes

o

no

» Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not | _X__yes .. None reported

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be X__yes no

reported in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB

Circular A-1337?

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s):

11.463, ARRA

12.610

15.507

15.508

98.486-A-00-06-00016-00

ARRA - 10.688

ARRA - 15.656

Name of Federal Program or Cluster,

U.S. Depariment of Commerce, National Oceanic
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Habitat Conservation
and ARRA - Habitat Conservation

U.S. Department of Defense, U.S. Army Medical
Command, Community Economic Adjustment Planning
Assistance for Joint Land Use Studies

U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation,
Water 2025

U.S. Department of the Interior, Bureau of Reclamation,
Providing Water to At-Risk Natural Desert Terminal Lakes

U.S. Agency for International Development, Responsible
Agia Forestry and Trade (RAFT)

U.S. Department of Agriculture, U.S. Forest Service,
ARRA - Wildlife Fire Management

U.S. Department of the Interior, U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service, ARRA - Habitat Enhancement, Restoration and
Improvement
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Daliar threshold used to distinguish between $2,848,338
type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? __X_vyes no

Section Il - Financlal Statement Findings

No matters were reported.

Remainder of page intentionally laft blank
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Section lll - Federa! Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2010-1: Cost Transfers

Federal Agency: All Federal Programs

Program: All Programs

CFDA #: Various

Award #: Various

Award Year: Various

Pass-through: Various

Criteria;

OMB Circular A-122 A4.b establishes that any costs allocable to & particular award or other cost
objectives may not be shifted to other Federal awards to overcome funding deficiencies, or to avoid
restrictions imposed by law or by terms of the award. Appropriate controls should be in place to prevent

frequent, tardy, and unexplained (or inadequately explained) transfers.

TNC policy requires that the journal entry form submitted to initiate a cost transfer include appropriate
justification and is supported by sufficient documentation.

Condition:

The Conservancy has a formal policy and procedures over transfers, however, it does not address the
length of time between the transaction and when the transfer occurs. The Conservancy had turnover in
the grants specialist position for grant 486-A-00-06-00016-00.

During our testing of 25 cost transfers totaling $9,829,683, seven cost transfers within CFDA# 98.486-A-
00-06-00016 had a gross total of $630,043 relating to a prior figcal year. The transfers were corrections
between accounts due to miscoding in prior years. The costs are allowable and within the period of
availability, however, the transfers crossed fiscal years. The average lag between the original expense
and the transfer is 580 days. The total program amount Is $2,931,483. Additional details of these items
are presented in the table below.
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Agency | CFDA# | Program | Agreement Reference | Exception Questioned
ID Amount Cost

USAID 98. 486- | RAFT 486-A-00-068- | A,B,C $(230,455) $0
A-00-08- 00016-00
000186-00

USAID | 98.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A/B,C $68,853 $0
A-00-08- 00016-00
00016-00

USAID | 98.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A,B,D $97,335 $0
A-00-08- 00016-00
00016-00

USAID | 98.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-08- | A B, E $28,000 $0
A-00-06- 00016-00
00016-00

USAID 98.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A,B, F $(163,000) $0
A-00-08- 00016-00
00016-00

USAID 98.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A B, E $(28,000) 30
A-00-08- 00016-00
00016-00

USAID 98.486- | RAFT 488-A-00-08- | A,B,E $(14,400) $0
A-00-08- 00016-00
00016-00

A - Untimely processing of cost transfer (transfer was completed over 1 year from original expenditure)

B - Transfers recorded relating to a prior year expense (out of period expense)
C - Transfer from contract/prof fees to federal subrecipient expenses - US Fed Gov't
D - Transfer between sub-centers within the same account, contract/prof fees

E - Transfer from non-federal sub-awards to contract/prof fees.
description is for non-federal sub-awards, the charges related to a federal grant and were recorded to a

Note that while the expense account

federal grant cost center and were billed to the federal government.

F - Transfer from non-federal sub-awards to federal subrecipient expenses - US Fed Gov't. Note that
while the expense account description is for non-federal sub-awards, the charges related to a federal

grant and were recorded to a federal grant cost center and were billed to the federal government.

Questioned Costs:

None.
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Cause:

The Conservancy tracks revenues and expenses through approximately 22,000 cost centers. Due to the
Conservancy's operating structure, a network of 54 grants specialists are responsible for monitoring the
appropriateness of expenditures charged to grants through monitoring of the cost centers and to make
corrections as necessary. This monitoring for agreement ID 486-A-00-06-00016-00 was not consistentiy
and timely performed. When a turnover in grants specialist occurred, corrections to the coding of
expenses were recorded in the current year. Additionally, the Conservancy's current policy on cost
transfers does not specify a time limit between the date of the original cost and when a cast transfer can
be made for federal grant cost centers.

Effect:

Untimely transfers may result in the misstatement of the amount of expenditures charged to a specific
grant. The Conservancy runs the risk of issuing incorrect invoices to the government or submission of
inaccurate financial reports due to untimely transfers.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Conservancy expand its existing policy over cost transfers to address the
following:

1) Communicate the importance of timeliness of transfer requests initiated from the field from the
date of when the original cost was incurred. Consider requiring that cost transfers be completed
within a certain period of time from the original expenditure date to ensure that errors are
captured and corrected timely. In all cases, the required time period is subject to other deadlines
(e.g., the filing of a Financial Status Report for government grants, year-end closing), and
therefore may be shorter, as applicable.

2) That transfers over a certain threshold relating to federal grants (transfers in or out of grant cost
center) be authorized by the Director of Grants for appropriateness and to ensure compliance.

Additionally, we recommend increased review and analysis of grants where there has been turnover by
the grants specialist administering the grant, or when the grant is new or complex. More frequent periodic
evaluations when a grant is first signed will halp etisure that only allowable costs are charged to the grant
and that project staff is charging the appropriate cost centers, which may reduce future cost transfers,
We also recommend a detailed analysis of grants-that have -been assigned fo new grants- specialists
during the transition period to help the new grants speciaiist identify corrections in a timely manner.

Views of Responsible Officials/Management Response:

As noted above, the Conservancy manages over 22,000 cost centers. Reclassifications of expenses,
internal charging mechanisms, resource allocation implementation, funding of capital projects, etc. require
that transfers between cost centers occur on a daily basis, and in considerable numbers. All of these
transfers are documented in the form of a journal eniry, whether they are automated or manually
prepared. All of these journal entries are reviewed by the Conservancy's three central accountants when
entered into the system, or when set up to occur as an automated recurring journal entry. Also, as noted
above, there were no errars found in the auditor's testing.

The Conservancy agrees that maore timely submission would be optimal and would minimize questions of
propriety. Therefore, the Conservancy's Director, Grants Services, in coordination with the Controller, will
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

review the organization's procedures and written documentation tied to cost transfers to identify
opportunities for improvement in the process and will consider the costs and benefits of establishing a
threshold for unrestricted fransfers, and for older government grant transfers, which would trigger a higher
or more detalled level of review. The Director, Grants Services will work with the organization's Finance
Resource Center and the Grants Service Network to communicate the importance of timefiness to all of
our figld/functional finrance and grants professionals. The review of the process and the communication
to field staff will be completed by March 31, 2011.

In addition, the Director, Grants Services, in coordinaiion with the Grants Cabinet, will review the
mentoring, monitoring, and training provided to new Granis Specialists in the organization and identify
opportunities far improvement in the Conservancy's onboarding of new Grants Specialists. The Director,
Grants Services will also review procedures to ensure a new complex or high risk grant is appropriately
evaluated upon execution of the award and has sufficient administrative support within the organization.
This review and implementation of any new procedures will be completed by June 30, 2011.

Remainder of page intentionally left blank
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Finding 2010-2: Repotrting
Federal Agency: All Federal Programs

Program: All Programs
CFDA #: Various
Award #. Various
Award Year: Various
Pass-through: Various

Criteria:

inaccurate Financial Reports

OMB Circular A-110, Section _.51 requires that a recipient's financial management system provide
accurate, current and complete disclosure of financial resuits of each federally-sponsared project or
program in accordance with the reporting requirement set forth in Section _.52.

Financial Reports

OMB Circular A-110, Subpart C_51{b) states that the Federal awarding agency shall prescribe the
frequency with which the performance reports shall be submitted. It also states that performance reports
shall not be required more frequently than quarterly or, less frequently than annually, except as provided
in paragraph _.51(f). Paragraph _.51(b) aiso states that annual reports shall be due 90 calendar days
after the grant year-end, quarterly or semi-annual reports shall be due 30 days after the end of the
reporting period, and final reports are due 90 calendar days after the expiration or termination of the
award.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

OMB Circular A-133 - Section _.310(b) sets forth that the auditee shall prepare a Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards (“the Schedule") for the pericd covered by the auditee's financial
statements. At a minimum, the Schedule shall list individual Federal programs by Federal agency and to
provide total Federal Awards expended for each individual Federal program and the CFDA number or
other identifying number when the CFDA information is not avaitable.
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Condition:

Inaccurate Financial Reports

During testing procedures over the allowability of direct costs, we noted items that cross fiscal years that
resulted in inaccurate quarterly and/or annual reports. Note that these items are allowable and within the
period of allowability. The details of these items are as follows:

Agency | CFDA # Program | AgreementID | Amount out | Questioned Reference
of period Cost

USAID 98. 486-A-00- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- $6,932 $0 A
06-00016-00 00016-00

USAID 98. 486-A-00- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- $90,474 $0 B
06-00016-00 00016-00

USAID 98. 486-A-00- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- $630,043 $0 C
06-00016-00 00016-00

A - Invoice date was 3/28/09, recorded on 12/1/09.
B - Represents payment to a subrecipient. Invoice received in August 2009, recorded on 12/22/09.
C - Represents untimely transfers noted in Finding 2010-1. Items relate to fiscal year 2008 and 20089.

Financial Reports

During our testing of 32 reports, two financial reports were not submitted and one was submitted late.
Additional details of these items are as follows:

Agency | CFDA | Program Agreement ID Reference
#
DOD 12.610 | Community Economic Adjustment Planning W911SR-08-2- A
: Assistance for Joint Land Use Studies 0001 T
DOI 16.508 | Providing Water to At-Risk Natural Desert R10AP20652 B
Termina! Lakes

A - SF 269 Report and Progress Repart were not submitted.
B - SF 425 was not submitted in a timely manner. Report was 103 days late.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

During testing of 40 grants and review of grants within major programs, we noted two grants that were not
identified with the correct CFDA number on the draft SEFA. The details of these items are as follows:
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Agency | Incorrect | Correct Program Agreement ID | Reference
CFDA# | CFDA# |
DOD 12.420 12.610 Community Economic Adjustment W8118R-08- A
Planning Assistance for Joint Land 2-0001
Use Studies
DOD 12.420 12.421 GCPEP-DOD EST DAMD17-03- A
2-0050

A - CFDA classification in SEFA did not agree to supporting documentation based on the CFDA number
per the grant agreement or program objective as described in CFDA.gov.

Questioned Costs:
$0

Cause:

Due to the decentralized structure of the Conservancy, fo ensure compliance with regulatory
requirements, the Conservancy has a network of 54 granis specialists worldwide administering over
1,000 grants. The Director of Grants relies heavily on the grants specialists to ensure that policies and
procedures are enforced and performed to comply with federal requirements. The grants specialists and
program managers have varying level of experience and competence and may not be aware of the
impact of non-compliance,

Effect:

Late submission of required progress reports to the Federal agency or pass-through entity makes it
difficult for the sponsoring agency to monitor the Conservancy's compliance with the terms of its grant
agreements. It also hinders the ability of the Federal awarding agency to perform a timely review of the
financial status and progress of awards.

Classification of grants fo the incorrect CFDA number has an impact on the ability to properly classify
programs as type A or B for OMB Circular A-133 purposes and also results in an inaccurate presentation
of the totals for government programs. , :

Recommendation:

We recommend for the Conservancy to continue providing training and coaching to develop the grants
specialists and to keep them updated on changes in regulations or issues noted as part of internal and
external audits. We also recommend continued oversight by the Worldwide Office through the Director of
Grants and the Internal Audit Department of significant and/or complex grants to ensure that compliance
is adequately monitored by the grants specialists and that appropriate classification of grants by CFDA
number is performed. We recommend a pericdic review of the CFDA numbers for old grants to ensure
appropriateness. These procedures include a secondary review of reports submitted by the grants
specialists or review of their analyses on a periodic basis.
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The Nature Conservancy

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Additionally, we recommend enhancements to the existing inventory of federal grants to include
identification of compliance requirements applicable to the Conservancy, as well as status of the grants,
to assist the Director of Grants and the Grants Financiat Analyst with their responsibilities.

Views of Responsible Officials/Management Response:

At any given time, The Nature Conservancy has approximately 1,000 active government awards from
various funding agencies. The Conservancy's 54 grants specialists administer all of these awards. The
Conservancy has significant resources available to these staff, including training and documentation on
federal regulations as well as the Conservancy’s processes and procedures o ensure compliance with
these regulations. The Conservancy also has a Standard Operating Procedure which identifies roles and
- responsibilities of Grants Specialists and program staff in the administration of government grants.

The condition tied to Inaccurate Financial Reports correlates specifically to the cost transfer issue
addressed in Finding 2010-1. Note that no questioned costs were identified by the auditors. See
Management's Response in Finding 2010-1 for the organization’s plan to address this issue.

In response to the condition tied to Financial Reports, the Director, Grants Services will review the Grants
Specialists’ core responsibilities with these staff and will ensure the respective individuals supporting the
awards identified above have sufficient tracking mechanisms in place to manage reporting due dates.

" This will be completed by January 31, 2011. Timely submission of programmatic and financial reports is
clearly outlined as a requirement of staff managing and administering government grants in the
Conservancy's Standard Operating Procedure on government grants,

in response to the condition tied to the CFDA numbers on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards, the Director, Grants Services will continue to require Grants Specialists to review the CFDA
numbers in the organization’s central government grants database as part of the semiannual certification
process of award data. As part of the next certification process in February 2011, the Director, Grants
Services will discuss the findings included in this report with the Grants Service Network and will
underscore the importance of the review of the data included in the central government grants database.
The Director, Grants Services, in coordination with the Grants Cabinet, will explore opportunities for
additional periodic reviews of CFDA numbers. Finally, the Conservancy's internal audit team will include
the review of CFDA numbers in their workplans when conducting internal audits of government grants;
this will be implemented by December 31, 2010.

As discussed with the auditars, the Director, Grants Services, will implement procedures as part of the

preparation process for the A-133 audit for the period ending June 30, 2011, to identify compliance
requirements applicable to the major programs.
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The Nature Conservancy

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Other Auditor Reports

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) conducted a desk review of Assistance Agreement GL-
00E57101. The review included an evaluation of the Conservancy's financial reporting procedures and
testing of selected transactions from the period January 1, 2008 through June 25, 2009 as they related to
the above agreement. n response to the desk review performed, the EPA issued a report in July 2009,
which identified one area that needs to be improved to more fully comply with Federal and specific grant
requirements. The Conservancy's procurement and conflict of interest policies and procedures did not
identify potential disciplinary actions for violations of standards of conduct for employees, officers or
agents engaged in the award and administration of contracts. As a result, the report determined that the
Conservancy was not fully complying with the Federal requirements for procurement systems. No
questioned costs were identified. Managerment responded to the report issued by the EPA in a letter
dated August 19, 2008. The Nature Conservancy believes its Paolicies and Standard Operating
Procedures as well as its Cods of Conduct are in compliance with 40 CFR30.42 requirements. _

Management Actiop Plan

2010 Update
EPA reviewed the additional information provided by the Conservancy in its response to the report in a

lefter dated August 19, 2009, and agreed that The Nature Conservancy's Policies and Standard
Operating Procedures as well as its Code of Conduct are in compliance with 40 CFR30.42 requirements.
EPA closed out this desk review on February 22, 2010,
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TheNature @ Worldwide Office Tel (703) 841-5300 nature.org
—

Conservancy 4245 North Fairfax Drive, Suite 100 Fax (703) 841-1283
Protecting nature. Preserving life” Adington, VA 22203-1606

January 6, 2011

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1800 Tysons Boulevard
McLean, VA 22101 - 4261
Attn: Anna Liamzon

SUBJECT: Corrective Action Plan in response to A-133 audit for period ending
June 30, 2010

Dear Ms. Liamzon:

" Below you will find The Nature Conservancy’s Corrective Action Plan in response to the findings
included in the organization’s A-133 audit report for the period ending June 30, 2010.

Finding 2010-1; Cost Transfers

Federal Agency: All Federal Programs

Program: All Programs

CFDA #: Various

Award #: Various

Award Year: Various

Pass-through: Various

Criteria:

OMB Circular A-122 A.4.b establishes that any costs allocable to a particular award or other
cost objectives may not be shifted to other Federal awards to overcome funding deficiencies, or
to avoid restrictions imposed by law or by terms of the award. Appropriate controls should be in

place to prevent frequent, tardy, and unexplained (or inadequately explained) transfers.

TNC policy requires that the journal entry form submitted to initiate a cost transfer include
appropriate justification and is supported by sufficient documentation.

Condition:
The Conservancy has a formal policy and procedures over transfers, however, it does not

address the length of time between the transaction and when the transfer occurs. The
Conservancy had turnover in the grants specialist position for grant 486-A-00-06-00016-00.

@ 100% post-consumer materisls



During our testing of 25 cost transfers totaling $9,829,683, seven cost transfers within CFDA#
08.486-A-00-06-00016 had a gross total of $630,043 relating to a prior fiscal year. The
transfers were corrections between accounts due to miscoding in prior years. The costs are
allowable and within the period of availability, however, the transfers crossed fiscal years. The
average lag between the original expense and the transfer is 580 days. The total program
amount is $2,931,483. Additional details of these items are presented in the table below.

Agency | CFDA# | Program | Agreement Reference | Exception Questioned
ID Amount Cost

USAID | 98.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A, B,C $(230,455) $0
A-00-06- 00016-00
00016-00

USAID 08.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A, B, C $68,853 $0
A-00-06- 000186-00 '
00016-00

USAID | 98.486- | RAFT 488-A-00-06- | A, B, D $97,335 $0
A-00-06- 00016-00
00016-00 .

USAID 98.486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A, B,E $28,000 $0
A-00-08- 00018-00
00016-00 _

USAID 98. 486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A,B,F ${163,000) $0
A-00-06- 00016-00
00016-00

USAID 98. 486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A,B,E $(28,000) $0
A-00-06- 00016-00
000186-00 '

USAID 98. 486- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- | A, B, E $(14,400) $0
A-00-06- 00016-00
00016-00

A - Untimely processing of cost transfer (transfer was completed over 1 year from original
expenditure)

B - Transfers recorded relating to a prior year expense (out of period expense)

C - Transfer from contract/prof fees to federal subrecipient expenses - US Fed Gov't

D - Transfer between sub-ceniers within the same account, contract/prof fees

E - Transfer from non-federal sub-awards to contract/prof fees. Note that while the expense
account description is for non-federal sub-awards, the charges related to a federal grant and
were recorded to a federal grant cost center and were billed to the federal government.

F - Transfer from non-federal sub-awards to federal subrecipient expenses - US Fed Gov't.
Note that while the expense account description is for non-federal sub-awards, the charges
related to a federal grant and were recorded to a federal grant cost center and were billed to the
federal government.

Questioned Costs:

None.
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Cause:

The Conservancy tracks revenuss and expenses through approximately 22,000 cost centers.
Due to the Conservancy's operating structure, a network of 54 grants specialists are responsible
for monitoring the appropriateness of expenditures charged to grants through monitoring of the
cost centers and to make corrections as necessary. This monitoring for agreement 1D 486-A-
00-06-00016-00 was not consistently and timely performed. When a turnover in grants
_specialist occurred, corrections to the coding of expenses were recorded in the current year.
Additionally, the Conservancy's current policy on cost transfers does not specify a time limit
beiween the date of the original cost and when a cost transfer can be made for federal grant
cost centers. '

Effect:

Untimely transfers may result in the misstatement of the amount of expenditures charged to a
specific grant. The Conservancy runs the risk of issuing incorrect invoices to the government or
submission of inaccurate financial reports due to untimely transfers.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Conservancy expand its existing policy over cost transfers to address
the following:

1) Communicate the importance of timeliness of transfer requests initiated from the field
from the date of when the original cost was incurred. Consider requiring that cost
transfers be completed within a certain period of time from the original expenditure date
to ensure that errors are captured and corrected timely. In all cases, the required time
period is subject to other deadlines (e.g., the filing of a Financial Status Report for
government grants, year-end closing), and therefore may be shotrter, as applicable.

2) That transfers over a certain threshold relating to federal grants (transfers in or out of
grant cost center) be authorized by the Director of Grants for appropriateness and to
ensure compliance.

Additionally, we recommend increased review and analysis of grants where there has been
turnover by the grants specialist administering the grant, or when the grant is new or complex.
More frequent periodic evaluations when a grant is first signed will help ensure that only
allowable costs are charged to the grant and that project staff is charging the appropriate cost
centers, which may reduce future cost transfers. We also recommend a detailed analysis of
grants that have been assigned to new grants specialists during the transition period to help the
new grants specialist identify corrections in a timely manner.

Views of Responsible Officials/Management Response:

As noted above, the Conservancy manages over 22,000 cost centers. Reclassifications of
expenses, internal charging mechanisms, resource allocation implementation, funding of capital
projects, etc. require that transfers between cost centers occur on a daily basis, and in
considerable numbers. All of these transfers are documented in the form of a journal entry,
whether they are automated or manually prepared. All of these journal entries are reviewed by
the Conservancy’s three central accountants when entered into the system, or when set up to
occur as an automated recurring journal entry. Also, as noted above, there were no errors
found in the auditor’s testing.
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The Conservancy agrees that more timely submission would be optimal and would minimize
questions of propriety. Therefore, the Conservancy’s Director, Grants Services, in coordination
with the Controller, will review the organization’s procedures and written documentation tied to
cost transfers to identify opportunities for improvement in the process and will consider the costs
and benefits of establishing a threshold for unrestricted transfers, and for older government
grant transfers, which would trigger a higher or more detailed level of review. The Director,
Grants Services will work with the organization’s Finance Resource Center and the Grants
Service Network to communicate the importance of timeliness to all of our fisld/functional
finance and grants professionals. The review of the process and the communication to field
staft will be completed by March 31, 2011.

In addition, the Director, Grants Services, in coordination with the Grants Cabinet, will review
the mentoring, monitoring, and training provided to new Grants Specialists in the organization
and identify opportunities for improvement in the Conservancy’s onboarding of new Grants
Specialists. The Director, Grants Services will also review procedures to ensure a new complex
or high risk grant is appropriately evaluated upon execution of the award and has sufficient
administrative support within the organization. This review and implementation of any new
procedures will be completed by June 30, 2011.

Finding 2010-2: Reporting

Federal Agency: All Federal Programs
Program: All Programs

CFDA #: Various

Award #: Various

Award Year: Various

Pass-through: Various

Criteria:

Inaccurate Financial Reports

OMB Circutar A-110, Section _.51 requires that a recipient's financial management system
provide accurate, current and complete disclosure of financial results of each federally-
sponsored project or program in accordance with the reporting requirement set forth in Section
_.52.
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Financial Reporis

OMB Circular A-110, Subpart C_.51(b) states that the Federal awarding agency shall prescribe
the frequency with which the performance reports shall be submitted. It also states that
performance reports shall not be required more frequently than quarterly or, less frequently than
annually, except as provided in paragraph _.51(f). Paragraph _.51(b) also states that annual
reports shall be due 90 calendar days after the grant year-and, quarterly or semi-annual reports
shall be due 30 days after the end of the reporting period, and final reports are due 20 calendar
days after the expiration or termination of the award.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

OMB Circular A-133 - Section _.310(b} sets forth that the auditee shall prepare a Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards ("the Schedule") for the period covered by the auditee's
financial statements. At a minimum, the Schedule shall list individual Federa! programs by
Federal agency and to provide total Federal Awards expended for each individual Federal
program and the CFDA number or other identifying number when the CFDA information is not
available.

Condition:

Inaccurate Financial Reporis

During testing procedures over the allowability of direct costs, we noted items that cross fiscal
years that resulted in inaccurate quarterly and/or annual reports. Note that these items are
allowable and within the period of allowability. The details of these items are as follows;

Agency | CFDA# Program | AgreementID | Amountout | Questioned Reference
“of period Cost

USAID | 98. 486-A-00- | RAFT 486-A-00-06- $6,932 %0 A
06-00016-00 00016-00 :

USAID | 98. 486-A-00- | BAFT 486-A-00-08- | $90,474 $0 B
06-00016-00 00016-00

USAID | 98. 486-A-00- | BAFT 486-A-00-06- $630,043 $0 C
06-00016-00 00016-00

A - Invoice date was 3/28/09, recorded on 12/1/09, :
B - Represents payment to a subrecipient. Invoice received in August 2009, recorded on

12/22/08.
C - Represents untimely transfers noted in Finding 2010-1. ltems relate to fiscal year 2008 and

2008.

Financial Reporis

During our testing of 32 reports, two financial reports were not submitted and one was submitted
late. Additional details of these items are as follows:

Agency | CFDA | Program Agreement ID Reference
#
DOD 12.610 | Community Economic Adjustment Planning W911SR-08-2- A
Assistance for Joint Land Use Studies 0001
DOl 15.508 | Providing Water to At-Risk Natural Desert R10AP20652 B
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| | Terminal Lakes l ]

A - SF 269 Report and Progress Report were not submitted.
B - SF 425 was not submitted in a timely manner. Report was 103 days late.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

During testing of 40 grants and review of grants within major programs, we noted two grants
that were not identified with the correct CFDA number on the draft SEFA. The details of these
items are as follows:

Agency | Incorrect | Correct Program Agreement ID | Reference
CFDA# | CEDA#
boD 12.420 12.610 Community Economic Adjustment W911SR-08- A
Planning Assistance for Joint Land 2-0001
_ Use Studies .
DCD 12.420 12.421 GCPEP-DOD EST DAMD17-03- A
2-0050

A - CFDA classification in SEFA did not agree to supporting documentation based on the CFDA
number per the grant agreement or program objective as described in CFDA.gov.

Questioned Costs:

$0
Cause:

Due to the decentralized structure of the Conservancy, to ensure compliance with regulatory
requirements, the Conservancy has a network of 54 grants specialists worldwide administering
over 1,000 grants. The Director of Grants relies heavily on the grants specialists to ensure that
policies and procedures are enforced and performed to comply with federal requirements. The
grants specialists and program managers have varying level of experience and competence and
may not be aware of the impact of non- comphance

Effect:

Late submission of required progress reports to the Federal agency or pass-through entity
makes it difficult for the sponsoring agency to monitor the Conservancy's compliance with the
terms of its grant agreements. It also hinders the ability of the Federa! awardmg agency to
perform a timely review of the financial status and progress of awards.

Classification of grants to the incorrect CFDA number has an impact on the ability to properly
classify programs as type A or B for OMB Circular A-133 purposes and also results in an
inaccurate presentation of the totals for government programs,

Recommendation:

We recommend for the Conservancy to continue providing training and coaching to develop the
grants specialists and to keep them updated on changes in regulations or issued noted as part
of internal and external audits. We also recommend continued oversight by the Worldwide
Office through the Director of Grants and the Internal Audit Department of significant and/or
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complex grants to ensure that compliance is adequately monitored by the grants specialists and
that appropriate classification of grants by CFDA number is performed. We recommend a
periodic review of the CFDA numbers for old grants to ensure appropriateness.  These
procedures include a secondary review of reports submitted by the grants specialists or review
of their analyses on a periodic basis.

Additionally, we recommend enhancements to the existing inventory of federal grants to include
identification of compliance requirements applicable to the Conservancy, as well as status of the
grants, to assist the Director of Grants and the Grants Financial Analyst with their
responsibilities.

Views of Responsible Officials/Management Response:
At any given time, The Nature Conservancy has approximately 1,000 active government awards

from various funding agencies. The Conservancy's 54 grants specialists administer all of these
awards. The Conservancy has significant resources available to these staft, including training
and documentation on federal regulations as well as the Conservancy’s processes and
procedures to ensure compliance with these regulations. The Conservancy also has a
Standard Operating Procedure which identifies roles and responsibilities of Grants Specialists
and program staff in the administration of government grants.

The condition tied to Inaccurate Financial Reports correlates specifically to the cost transfer
issue tied to Finding 2010-1. Note that no questioned costs were identified by the auditors. See
Management's Response in Finding 2010-1 for the organization’s plan to address this issue.

In response to the condition tied to Financial Reports, the Director, Grants Services will review
the Grants Specialists’ core responsibilities with these staff and will ensure the respective
individuals supporting the awards identified above have sufficient tracking mechanisms in place
to manage reporting due dates. This will' be completed by January 31, 2011. Timely
submission of programmatic and financial reports is clearly outlined as a requirement of staff
managing and administering government grants in the Conservancy’s Standard Operating
Procedure on government grants.

In response to the condition tied to the CFDA numbers on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federa! Awards, the Director, Grants Services will coniinue to require Granis Specialists to
review the CFDA numbers in the organization’s central government grants database as part of
the semiannual certification process of award data. As part of the next certification process in
February 2011, the Director, Grants Services will discuss the findings included in this report with
the Grants Service Network and will underscore the importance of the review of the data
included in the central government grants database. The Director, Grants Services, in
coordination with the Grants Cabinet, will explore opportunities for additional periodic reviews of
CFDA numbers. Finally, the Conservancy’s internal audit team will include the review of CFDA
numbers in their workplans when conducting internal audits of government grants; this will be
 implemented by December 31, 2010.

As discussed with the auditors, the Director, Grants Services, will implement procedures as part

of the preparation process for the A-133 audit for the period ending June 30, 2011, to identify
compliance requirements applicable to the major programs.
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If you require additional information, please let me know.

Sincerely,

Stephen C. Howell
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

Cc:  Liz Crowder, Director, Grants Services
Hilary Toma, Director, Conservation Operations
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